

Address Validation Functional Overview Ellipse EAM® 8.4



© Copyright 2014 ABB All Rights Reserved Confidential and Proprietary

Legal Disclaimer

The product described in this documentation may be connected to, and/or communicate information and data via, a network interface, which should be connected to a secure network. It is your sole responsibility to ensure a secure connection to the network and to establish and maintain appropriate measures (such as but not limited to the installation of firewalls, application of authentication measures, encryption of data, installation of antivirus programs, etc.) to protect the product, the network, your systems, and the interface against any kind of security breach, unauthorised access, interference, intrusion, leakage, damage, or corruption or theft of data. We are not liable for damages or losses related to any such security breach, unauthorised access, interference, or theft of data.

Table of Contents

Definitions, Acronyms and Abbreviations	5
Introduction	6
Purpose	6
Scope	6
Scope Exclusions	6
Background	7
Business Benefits	7
Functional Enhancements	8
Special Character Validation on Address	8
CRAV - HR System Administrator Position Associated Value	8
Remove Redundant Associated Questions on CRAV	9
Default HR System Administrator Position on MSM001E	9
Automatic Conversion of SUCI Records to MSF81B	9
New MSF81B Suburb City File	9
New MSE81B Suburb Program and AddressSuburb Service	10
Address Validation via Personnel Workbench (MSE81S)/Employee Service (MSK810)	10
Address Validation/Special Character Validation on Appointing an Employee from a Non-	•

Employee	11
Address Validation via Maintain Non-Employee Details (MSO811)	11
Notification Email to HR System Administrator Position Incumbents	
Suburb Drop Down Handler on MSE81S	
Additional Address Validation (MSO and MSE)	12
Component Differences in Ellipse 8.4	13
New Components	13
MSF81B - Suburb	13
MSE81B - Suburb	13
AddressSuburb Service	13
Modifications to Existing Components.	
CRAV – Country Address Validation Rules 010 Table	
MSE81S – Personnel Workbench	
MSK810 – Employee Service	13
MSO811 – Maintain Non-Employee Details	13
MSM001E – System Control Files	13
MSM00RE – Review System Control Files	13
Obsolete Components	13
How to Configure	14
Modules	14
System Control File	14
District Control File	14
Table Codes	14
Security	10
MSE02D – Update Security Application	16
MSE02C – Update Security Classes – Methods	
MSE02C – Update Security Classes – Attributes	
Care Many Changes	10
Other Configuration	18 19
	10
Business Process	19
Functional Overview	
Search for a Suburb record on MSE81B	20
Create a Suburb record on MSE81B	20
Activate/Inactivate a Suburb record on MSE81B	21
Delete a Suburb record on MSE81B	22
Action to Personnel Workbench (MSE81S) from MSE81B	23
Action to Maintain Non-Employee Details (MSO811) from MSE81B	23
Maintain Employee Residential/Postal Address (MSE81S)	24 ⊃⊑
	23
FAQs	
Appendix – Updating MSF81B via Smart Excel	

Definitions, Acronyms and Abbreviations

Definition	Description
Address Line 1/2	The first 2 lines of an address not including the suburb, postcode (zip code), state or country. Example: Unit 1 177 Turbot Street
	Note: When data is entered in Address Line 1, the Suburb, State, Postcode and Country fields are mandatory. Address Line 2 is a non- mandatory field.
Address Line 3	Used to store Suburb (City). This field is validated against MSF81B when suburb/postcode validation is switched on. The field is a drop down box that displays suburb name, state, postcode and country combinations and the status when that is 'inactive only.
CRAV	The Country Address Validation Rules (CRAV) 010 table code controls (at a country code level) whether suburb/postcode validation is enforced for employees and for non-employees, the valid special characters that can be entered in the address line fields and the HR Administrator Position that receives notification emails for inactive code administration.
MSE81B	MSE81B – Suburb is the new Ellipse program used for creating and maintaining suburb/postcode (zip code) combinations for validation checking. Records are held on MSF81B.
MSE81S	MSE81S – Personnel Workbench is the Ellipse program used for updating core, personnel and payroll employee residential and postal addresses. Current address records are held on MSF810.
MSO811	MSO811 - Maintain Non-Employee Details (MSO811) is the Ellipse program used for updating non-employee residential and postal addresses. Current address records are held on MSF811.
Special Characters	Keyboard characters other than alphanumeric characters (i.e. not A-Z or 0-9). For example " $\#$, _, &, ^, `, :". These special characters may or may not be acceptable for use in address line fields based on specific country requirements.
SUCI	The Suburb/City (SUCI) 010 table now obsolete with the release of this development item.

Introduction Purpose

The purpose of this functional overview is to describe how to configure and use the address validation enhancements contained in Ellipse 8.4.

Scope

The functional scope of the Address Validation enhancements was to:

- Provide a mechanism to validate suburb/postcode (zip code) combinations upon submit in the residential and postal address fields for employees (via MSE81S- Personnel Workbench) and non-employees (via MSO811 – Maintain Non-Employees). This also includes service level validation when updating directly through the Employee service (MSK810) rather than via the Ellipse front-end.
- 2. Develop a drop down handler on the suburb field which filter and display suburb/postcode combinations for employees when using the Personnel Workbench (MSE81S).
- 3. Automatically populate the state, postcode and country fields when a suburb is selected from the drop down on the Personnel Workbench (MSE81S).
- 4. Provide a mechanism for validating the use of specified special characters in the relevant address line fields for a country. This prevents other non-valid characters from being used. For example to prevent '&' from being used in the suburb field in Australia.
- 5. Provide a mechanism for administrators to manage valid suburb/postcode combinations, including notifications of newly created inactive codes.

The technical scope of this enhancement included:

Ellipse 8.4.5 onwards
3001 – General Module
MSE81B – Suburb (New)
MSE81S – Personnel Workbench
MSO811 – Maintain Non-Employee Details
MSO001 – Maintain System Control Files
CRAV – Country Address Validation Rules
SUCI – Suburb City Validation (Obsolete)
AddressSuburb (New)
MSK810 - Employee
MSF81B – Suburb (New)

Scope Exclusions

The following was excluded from the Address Validation development in Ellipse 8.4:

 The ability to enter a postcode and automatically populate the Suburb, State and Country fields in the Personnel Workbench (MSE81S) residential or postal address fields. This was due to a technical limitation which prevents this functionality from working in conjunction with the ability to automatically populate the Postcode, State and Country fields after selecting a Suburb from the drop down. 2. The inclusion of a suburb drop down handler on Maintain Non-Employee Details (MSO811). This was due to MSO811 being flagged for replacement in later releases of Ellipse and the drop down handler not being compatible for use with MSO programs.

Background

Employee and non-employee address information is used for a variety of purposes within Ellipse including employee/non-employee communication (e.g. mail to residential and postal addresses), travel payment calculations (based on home to base) and statutory reporting (e.g. wage and tax statements (W2s) in the US).

It is therefore important to keep accurate address records, whether the data source is from Employee Self Service (ESS), 3rd party system data uploads or via data processing undertaken directly in Ellipse.

Address validation is complicated by the lack of a global standard for address formats. where each country defines its own standards for address formats and delivery point identifiers (DPIDs). In Australia, for example, DPIDs are used for each physical address.

While it is difficult to totally eliminate incorrect addresses from being entered in Ellipse (e.g. due to human error), it is possible to reduce the risk by validating against known suburb/postcode combinations, auto-populating state, postcode and country information from the specified suburb and allowing only nominated special characters to be used in address fields for a country.

Prior to Ellipse 8, special character address validation and suburb/postcode validation were controlled via the SUCI and CRAV table codes.

This resulted in a number of limitations including:

- 1. Special character validation applied to the entire address rather than at the Address Line 1, Suburb, Postcode, Country level. For example, a hyphen '-' may be acceptable in the suburb field but not the postcode field. The previous solution could not differentiate between the fields.
- 2. Users were prevented from entering valid suburb/postcode combinations unless they were predefined on the SUCI table.
- 3. Only numeric postal codes were permitted
- 4. Defaulting of state, country and postcode information occurred only if the suburb description held on the SUCI table was unique.
- 5. Validation was on MSO applications only and excluded service updating.

The purpose of the Address Validation enhancements in Ellipse 8.4 is to overcome the above limitations and provide a user friendly option for entering address information and managing address validation.

Business Benefits

The customer business benefits include:

- 1. Improved accuracy of address information held in Ellipse for employees and non-employees.
- 2. Faster data entry for employee address entry via the automatic populating of state, postcode and country fields for suburbs held on the MSF81B Suburb table.
- 3. A simple method for managing valid suburb/postcode combinations in Ellipse including notification messages.

Functional Enhancements

The following section details the individual enhancements made with this development item and associated design decisions.

Special Character Validation on Address

The CRAV 010 table file was modified to enable the following in Ellipse 8.4 by country code:

- 1. Enforce special character validation for employees. The default is blank or no special character validation.
- 2. Enforce special character validation for non-employees. The default is blank or no special character validation.
- 3. Specify special characters that can be used in Address Line 1 and 2. Any special character not listed will therefore result in a validation error for addresses in that country. The default is blank and therefore no special characters are permitted.
- 4. Specify special character that can be used in Address Line 3 (Suburb). The default is blank and therefore no special characters are permitted.
- 5. Specify postcode as numeric only. The default is blank or no. This must be set to N to allow nominated special characters to be entered in the postcode field.

The following design decisions were made:

- 1. Special character validation is controlled at the country code level via the CRAV table associated questions.
- 2. Always allow alphanumeric character entry on Address Lines 1, 2 and 3 plus postcode by default.
- 3. Allow special character validation to be separately controlled for employees and nonemployees. This decision was due to legacy data and potential issues in updating nonemployee information if validation was switched on.
- 4. Special character validation is to apply to MSF811 and MSF810 residential and postal address records plus MSF81B transactions.
- 5. In the scenario where special character validation is on for employees and off for nonemployees, and a special character is entered for a non-employee address, the MSF81B record will be created as inactive. If an employee attempts to use the suburb/postcode from the inactive MSF81B record, they will receive an error message on submit as it contains a special character that is not permitted to be used for an employee address.
- 6. The CRAV table code will <u>not</u> control case entry (e.g. UPPER, lower, CaMel case) for address fields. The suburb field will be upper case.

CRAV - HR System Administrator Position Associated Value

A new associated value has been added to the CRAV country code to identify the HR System Administrator position for the specific country. The default value is blank.

All primary, secondary and higher duties incumbents of the nominated position for the country will be notified by email when an invalid MSF81B suburb/postcode combination is used for a residential and/or postal address AND address validation is switched on for employees and/or non-employees for the country.

Remove Redundant Associated Questions on CRAV

The Currency Code and Validate 3rd Party Payroll associated questions on the CRAV table code are now obsolete and have been removed.

Default HR System Administrator Position on MSM001E

A new mandatory field of Default HR System Administrator Position was added to the System Control File (MSM001E). The new field has also been added to the review screen (MSM00RE).

This will be used as a global default if a HR System Administrator Position is not nominated at the country code level on the CRAV table file. Incumbents of the nominated position will receive email notifications when suburb/postcode validation is on and inactive codes are used for either employees or a non-employees.

The following design decisions were made:

- 1. The new field will be mandatory to ensure at least 1 user is notified when inactive codes are used.
- 2. The nominated position cannot be set to the Top, Suspended or Terminated positions.
- 3. The nominated position on the system control file cannot be removed from the current position hierarchy.

Automatic Conversion of SUCI Records to MSF81B

The model has been updated to automatically convert existing SUCI table file records to MSF81B records on upgrading to Ellipse 8.4.5 (or higher).

Records will then be deleted from the SUCI table.

New MSF81B Suburb City File

A new database file has been created to store the suburb information for validation and drop down purposes.

	COLUMN_NAME	DATA_TYPE	NULLABLE	DATA_DEFAULT	COLUMN_ID
1	SUBURB_UUID	CHAR (32 CHAR)	No	• •	1
2	COUNTRY	CHAR (2 CHAR)	No	• •	2
3	CREATION_DATE	CHAR (8 CHAR)	No	• •	3
4	CREATION_EMP	CHAR (10 CHAR)	No	• •	4
5	CREATION_TIME	CHAR (6 CHAR)	No	• •	5
6	CREATION_USER	CHAR(10 CHAR)	No	• •	6
7	LAST_MOD_DATE	CHAR (8 CHAR)	No	• •	7
8	LAST_MOD_EMP	CHAR (10 CHAR)	No	• •	8
9	LAST_MOD_TIME	CHAR (6 CHAR)	No	• •	9
10	LAST_MOD_USER	CHAR (10 CHAR)	No	• •	10
11	STATE	CHAR (2 CHAR)	No	• •	11
12	ZIPCODE	CHAR (10 CHAR)	No	• •	12
13	ACTIVE_SUBURB_IND	CHAR (1 CHAR)	No	• •	13
14	SUBURB_NAME	CHAR (32 CHAR)	No	• •	14

The following design decisions were made:

- 1. Exclude provision for GPS co-ordinates on MSF81B. This is not required for suburbs. If necessary, this could be added later.
- 2. Exclude provision for street validation in MSF81B. This could be added later if required.

New MSE81B Suburb Program and AddressSuburb Service

A new java service (AddressSuburb) and program (MSE81B – Suburb) has been added to Ellipse to enable the management of MSF81B records.

The detail screen on MSF81B is to display details of the record and separate tabs for the Employees and Non-Employees currently using the address combination in MSF810/MSF811 respectively. An action is available to navigate the user to MSE81S (for employees) and MSO811 (for non-employees).

The following design decisions were made:

- 1. The service is to support the creation, deletion and review of records only. There will be no modify method. The fields on the MSE81B detail screen will be protected.
- 2. The use of the Smart Excel feature is recommended for the bulk management of MSF81B records.
- 3. A separate method will be created for controlling the Active/Inactive status of a MSF81B record.
- 4. A user cannot delete a MSF81B record if the status is "Active".
- 5. A user cannot delete a MSF81B record is the status is "Inactive" AND there are employees and/or non-employees using the suburb/postcode combination in MSF810 or MSF811.
- 6. A user cannot create a MSF81B record if the suburb/postcode combination already exists on MSF81B.
- 7. Special character validation held on the CRAV table file also applies to MSF81B records if the employee and/or non-employee address validation flag is set to Y.

Address Validation via Personnel Workbench

(MSE81S)/Employee Service (MSK810)

The Employee Service (MSK810) (also used by MSE81S - Personnel Workbench) has been updated to enforce special character and suburb/postcode validation based on the CRAV table code settings.

A user will receive an error message on submit if invalid special characters are used in the residential and/or postal address fields for an employee.

A user will receive a warning message if address validation is switched on AND they are attempting to use an inactive or non-existent MSF81B Suburb/Postcode combination for a residential and/or postal address. If the user accepts, the MSF810 record will be updated for the employee and a notification with be sent to the relevant HR System Administrator for action. A MSF81B record with a status of inactive will also be created if the record did not already exist.

Address Validation/Special Character Validation on Appointing an Employee from a Non-Employee

The MSE81S - Personnel Workbench provides the option to create an employee record from a nonemployee record. As a precondition, the non-employee must have a MSF811 record with an Applicant status and a MSF784 record.

The Employee Service has been modified to perform address and special character validation on create of employee record on the residential and postal address to ensure it conforms to the employee controls on the CRAV table file for the country.

Address Validation via Maintain Non-Employee Details (MSO811)

The MSO811 - Maintain Non-Employee Details program has been updated to enforce special character and suburb/postcode validation based on the CRAV table code settings.

A user will receive an error message on submit if invalid special characters are used in the residential and/or postal address fields for a non-employee.

A user will receive a warning message if address validation is switched on AND they are attempting to use an inactive or non-existent MSF81B Suburb/Postcode combination for a residential and/postal address for a non-employee. If the user accepts, the MSF811 record will be updated for the non-employee and a notification will be sent to the relevant HR System Administrator for action. A MSF81B record with a status of inactive will also be created if the record did not already exist.

The following design decisions were made:

1. The drop down handler for suburb will not be added to Maintain Non-Employee Details (MSO811) program.

Notification Email to HR System Administrator Position Incumbents

An email (using the exec notify function) will be sent to incumbents of the HR System Administrator position when an inactive MSF81B code is created or used and suburb/postcode validation is switched on.

The HR System Administrator position nominated against the relevant CRAV country code will be used. If this is blank, the Default HR System Administrator on MSM001E will be used.

The email details the:

- Employee ID and Name of the Employee/Non-Employee
- Address Type (i.e. Residential or Postal Address)
- Address details
- User ID and Name of the person creating/maintaining the details
- Contact work number and email address of the person maintaining the details

The intent is for the nominated position incumbent(s) to review the newly created code on MSF81B and either change the status to active or delete the invalid record.

The following design decisions were made:

- 1. Not to include a hyperlink to the associated MSE81B detail screen in the email notification for the inactive record. This was a scoping decision. The record is located via the search function on MSE81B.
- 2. Separate email notifications will be sent for residential and postal addresses (i.e. the HR System Administrator will receive 2 emails if the employee enters an inactive suburb/postcode combination for both the residential and postal addresses).
- 3. Email notifications will continue to be issued each time an inactive suburb/postcode is submitted for an employee/non-employee when validation is switched on.

Suburb Drop Down Handler on MSE81S

A drop down service handler has been added to the suburb fields (residential and postal address) in the Personnel Workbench (MSE81S).

The drop down is a filtered drop down (similar to the employee and position drop down handlers) and displays the suburb, postcode, state and country combination held in MSF81B. If a record has a status of "Inactive", the word "Inactive" will display in the drop down.

Selecting a suburb in the drop down results in the postcode, state and country fields automatically being populated based on the MSF81B data held for the suburb.

The following design decisions were made:

- 1. The drop down will appear whether address validation is turned on or off. This is because it enables the option for a customer to load MSF81B records but to not turn on address validation. The drop down would then display valid entries improving data quality and speed of entry, without the additional administrative overhead.
- 2. The drop down will perform a "contains" search on suburb only. It will not be a "contains" filter on postcode, state or country even though this information is displayed.
- 3. The Google Address API was not an option with existing infrastructure.

Additional Address Validation (MSO and MSE)

The following changes were made to address validation:

- 1. Address fields become mandatory if data is entered in Address Line 1.
- 2. Remove code to copy Address Line 2 to Address Line 3 (Suburb field) if Address Line 3 is blank. This code covered the situation where a user entered the suburb on the Address Line 2 in error. It is no longer required.

Please note that there was a change in Ellipse 8.4.0 that removed residential address from being mandatory for Core and Personnel employees. A residential address is mandatory for Payroll employees only (i.e. employees with an MSF820 record). These changes are still valid with the Address Validation enhancement.

Component Differences in Ellipse 8.4 New Components

The following new components have been implemented as a result of this development item:

MSF81B - Suburb MSE81B - Suburb AddressSuburb Service

Modifications to Existing Components

The following components have been modified as a result of this development item:

CRAV – Country Address Validation Rules 010 Table MSE81S – Personnel Workbench MSK810 – Employee Service MSO811 – Maintain Non-Employee Details MSM001E – System Control Files MSM00RE – Review System Control Files

Obsolete Components

The following component has been made obsolete as a result of this development item:

Component ID	Obsolete Component Name	Functionality Replaced By
SUCI	Suburb/City 010 table code entries	MSF81B - Suburb

How to Configure Modules

Module No	Module Name	Required	Notes
3001	General Module	Y	Required for employee and non-employee management.

System Control File

Screen	Attribute	Required	Notes
MSM001E	Default HR System Administrator	Y	New mandatory field. Will be used as the default HR System Administrator position if a position is not specified against the country code on the 010 CRAV table code.

District Control File

Not applicable

Table Codes

010 Table	Description	Table Type Def	Notes
CRAV	Country Address Validation Rules	Client	
SUCI	Suburb/City	Client	Obsolete table. Records will be automatically converted to MSF81B on migration to 8.4.5.

The CRAV table type associated values have been modified for this development item. Below is an explanation for configuration purposes.

MSM011C - REVIEW TABLE FILE X							
🖉 Submit 投 Reset Return							
Table Type	CRAV •	Country Addr	ess Validation Rules				
Table Code	AU						
Description	Australia						
Associated Values	YY HAP-2 /#&	\$@ Y					
Active	Y						
Last Mod Date	08 Jan 2014		Time		14:14		
Associated Value	Description			Pos.	Value		
Validate Employee	Validate Employee Suburb/Postcode (Y/N) 01 Y						
Validate Employee Address Char (Y/N) 02 Y							
Validate Employee	Address Char (Y/N)			02	Y		
Validate Employee Validate Non-Emp	Address Char (Y/N) Suburb/Postcode (Y/N)			02 03	Y		
Validate Employee Validate Non-Emp Validate Non-Emp	Address Char (Y/N) Suburb/Postcode (Y/N) Address Char (Y/N)			02 03 04	Y		
Validate Employee Validate Non-Emp Validate Non-Emp HR Administrator F	Address Char (Y/N) Suburb/Postcode (Y/N) Address Char (Y/N) Position			02 03 04 10	Y HAP-2		
Validate Employee Validate Non-Emp Validate Non-Emp HR Administrator F Address Line 1/2 S	Address Char (Y/N) Suburb/Postcode (Y/N) Address Char (Y/N) Position Special Characters Allow	ed		02 03 04 10 20	Y HAP-2 /#&		
Validate Employee Validate Non-Emp Validate Non-Emp HR Administrator F Address Line 1/2 S Suburb Special Ch	Address Char (Y/N) Suburb/Postcode (Y/N) Address Char (Y/N) Position Special Characters Allow aracters Allowed	ed		02 03 04 10 20 30	Y HAP-2 /#& \$@		
Validate Employee Validate Non-Emp Validate Non-Emp HR Administrator R Address Line 1/2 S Suburb Special Ch Numeric Postal Co	Address Char (Y/N) Suburb/Postcode (Y/N) Address Char (Y/N) Position Special Characters Allow aracters Allowed de (Y/N)	ed		02 03 04 10 20 30 40	Y HAP-2 /#& \$@ Y		
Validate Employee Validate Non-Emp Validate Non-Emp HR Administrator F Address Line 1/2 S Suburb Special Ch Numeric Postal Co Postal Code Specia	Address Char (Y/N) Suburb/Postcode (Y/N) Address Char (Y/N) Position Special Characters Allow aracters Allowed de (Y/N) al Characters Allowed	ed		02 03 04 10 20 30 40 41	Y HAP-2 /#& \$@ Y		

Validate Employee Suburb/Postcode (Y/N)

This controls whether validation is performed via MSK810 on the employee suburb field (residential and postal address) against records held on MSF81B. The default is N or blank. Change to Y to initiate validation. Validation is at a country level based on the relevant CRAV table code.

Validate Employee Address Char (Y/N)

This controls whether special character validation is performed on the employee address fields (residential and postal). The default is N or blank which means all special characters are accepted. Enter Y to initiate special character validation.

Validate Non-Emp Suburb/Postcode (Y/N)

This controls whether validation is performed via MSO811 on the non-employee suburb field (residential and postal address) against records held on MSF81B. The default is N or blank. Change to Y to initiate validation. Validation is at a country level based on the relevant CRAV table code.

Validate Non-Emp Address Char (Y/N)

This controls whether special character validation is performed on the non-employee address fields (residential and postal). The default is N or blank which means all special characters are accepted. Enter Y to initiate special character validation.

Note: If special character validation is switched on at the employee and/or non-employee level, validation will also be performed when MSF81B records are created via MSE81B or the AddressSuburb service.

HR Administrator Position

This is an optional field that allows a HR Administrator position to be nominated for the specific CRAV country code. This allows a country specific position to be nominated for the administration of MSF81B codes. The default is blank. If blank, the Default HR Administrator position nominated on the system control record will be used. All incumbents of the nominated HR Administrator Position will receive the email notification messages when an inactive MSF81 record is used or created for an employee or non-employee when validation of suburb/postcode is switched on.

Address Line 1/2 Special Characters Allowed

This associated value is used when special character validation is switched on for employees and/or non-employees. Nominate the special characters that are to be accepted in the Address Line 1 or 2 of the residential and postal address. Do not enter with spaces or commas between the special characters. Up to 10 special characters can be nominated. The punctuation special characters that may be specified are:

!"#\$%&'()*+,-./:;<=>?@[\]^_`{|}~

The default is blank or no special characters allowed.

Suburb Special Character Allowed

This associated value is used when special character validation is switched on for employees and/or non-employees. Nominate the special characters that are to be accepted in the suburb field of the residential and postal address. Do not enter with spaces or commas between the special characters. Up to 10 special characters can be nominated. The punctuation special characters that may be specified are:

```
!"#$%&'()*+,-./:;<=>?@[\]^_`{|}~
```

The default is blank or no special characters allowed.

Numeric Postal Code (Y/N)

This associated value controls whether postal codes are numeric only or if other characters are allowed. The default is N or blank. Set to Y if the postal code is entirely numeric for the CRAV country code. Set to N to allow Alphabetic characters to be entered and the use of special character validation.

Postal Code Special Character Validation

This associated value is used when special character validation is switched on for employees and/or non-employees and the associated value for the Numeric Postal Code (Y/N) is set to N. Nominate the special characters that are to be accepted in the suburb field of the residential and postal address. Do not enter with spaces or commas between the special characters. Up to 10 special characters can be nominated. The punctuation special characters that may be specified are:

!"#\$%&'()*+,-./:;<=>?@[\]^`{|}~

The default is blank or no special characters allowed.

Data Conversion

Conversion of SUCI table code records to MSF81B records have been incorporated into the model.

Security

Security for the new MSE81B – Suburb program will need to be configured for the appropriate users. Ventyx recommends the following be configured for a HR System Administrator.

MSE02D – Update Security Application

Application	Access Level			Notes
	Actor 1	Actor 2	Actor 3	
MSE81B - Suburb	HR System Administrator	n/a	n/a	HR System Administrator is the actor responsible for managing MSF81B records

MSE02C – Update Security Classes – Methods

Class Name	Class Method	Access Level	Notes
		HR System Administrator	
AddressSuburb	Create	9 – Full Access	
	Delete	9 – Full Access	

Class Name	Class Method	Access Level	Notes
		HR System Administrator	
	Read	9 – Full Access	
	Search	9 – Full Access	
	Activate	9 – Full Access	Used to control the Active/Inactive Status of records on MSF81B
	SearchEmployees	9 – Full Access	Used to retrieve employees using the MSF81B code in the MSE81B detail screen
	SearchNonemployees	9 – Full Access	Used to retrieve non- employees using the MSF81B code in the MSE81B detail screen

MSE02C – Update Security Classes – Attributes

Class Name	Class Attribute	Class Attribute	Review Flag	Access Level		
		Description	. iug	HR System Administrator	n/a	n/a
AddressSuburb	ACTIVEIND	Boolean		Read Write Access		
	COUNTRY	Country Code		Read Write Access		
	CREATEDBYEMP	Employee Identification	Y	Read Only Access		
	CREATEDBYUSER	User ID	Y	Read Only Access		
	CREATEDTIME	Default defer time for batch run	Y	Read Only Access		
	CREATEDDATE	Creation Date	Y	Read Only Access		

Class Name	Class Attribute	Class Attribute	Review Flag	Acces	s Level	
		2000.1911011		HR System Administrator	n/a	n/a
	INACTIVEIND	Boolean		Read Write Access		
	MODIFIEDBYEMP	Employee Identification	Y	Read Only Access		
	MODIFIEDBYUSER	User ID	Y	Read Only Access		
	MODIFIEDDATE	Creation Date	Y	Read Only Access		
	MODIFIEDTIME	Default defer time for batch run	Y	Read Only Access		
	STATE	State Code		Read Write Access		
	SUBURB	Suburb		Read Write Access		
	SUBURBUUID	Universal Unique ID	Y	Read Only Access		
	ZIPCODE	Zip code		Read Write Access		

Core Menu Changes

The core menu has been updated to include the new MSE81B – Suburb program.

Other Configuration

- 1. Ensure there is at least one incumbent of the Default HR System Administrator position on MSM001E and the HR System Administrator associated value on the CRAV country code records.
- 2. Ensure the above incumbents have a valid work email address in order to receive email notification messages.
- 3. Update custom menus for MSE81B Suburb administrator profiles.

Business Process

The following diagram represents the business process flow for address validation for a site using both special character validation and suburb/postcode validation.



Address Validation Process Flow

Key Steps:

- 1. The user updates the address details (residential and/or postal address) for an employee (using MSE81S) or a non-employee (MSO811). The Employee Service (MSK810) may also be used for employees.
- 2. The user receives an Ellipse error message if invalid special characters are used in the address fields. The user must remove the invalid special characters before re-submitting.
- 3. If no invalid special characters are found, Ellipse validates the suburb/postcode combination used in the address details against MSF81B. If an existing active MSF81B code is used, the update will be processed successfully. If the suburb/postcode combination does not exist on MSF81B or is an inactive code, the user will receive a warning message.
- 4. If the user cancels at the warning message, the entered address details will need to be corrected before resubmitting.
- 5. If the user accepts at the warning message, the update is processed. If the entered suburb/postcode combination does not exist on MSF81B, it is automatically created with a status of Inactive.
- 6. An email notification is generated to the incumbents of the nominated HR System Administrator position to advise of the use of an inactive MSF81B record.
- 7. Using MSE81B, the HR System Administrator must determine if the inactive code is valid. If yes, they must change the status of the MSF81B record to Active. If the code is not valid, they must correct the entered address details record and delete the inactive MSF81B record. Only inactive MSF81B codes not being used by MSF810 and/or MSF811 can be deleted.

The following activities can be performed as a result of these development item:

HR System Administrator:

- Search for a suburb record on MSE81B
- Create a suburb record on MSE81B
- Activate/Inactivate a suburb record on MSE81B
- Delete a suburb record on MSE81B
- Action to Personnel Workbench (MSE81S) from MSE81B
- Action to Maintain Non-Employee Details (MSO811) from MSE81B

Ellipse User:

- Maintain Employee Residential/Postal Address (MSE81S)
- Maintain Non-Employee Residential/Postal Address (MSO811)

Search for a Suburb record on MSE81B

<u>Step 1.</u>

Launch MSE81B – Search Suburb.

<u>Step 2.</u>

Select an "Exact Match" Suburb Search Method and enter the suburb's name in the Suburb field. Select Search.

Suburbs matching the search will display.

MSE81B - Search Suburb					
Search 🦓 New Search 🔓 New					
Primary Criteria					
Suburb Search Method	Exact Match 🔹				
Suburb	HOLLAND PARK				
Filters					
Post Code/Zip					State
Country	•				Inactive Suburbs Only
Search Results					
Suburb	Post Code/Zip	State	Country	Active	
HOLLAND PARK	4121	QL - Queensland	AU - AUSTRALIA	V	
HOLLAND PARK	3128	VI - Victoria	AU - AUSTRALIA	\checkmark	

Notes:

- 1. Additional search methods of All, Starts From and Starts With are available.
- 2. Additional search filtering on Postcode/Zip Code, State and Country fields are available.
- 3. Use the Suburb Search Method of "All" and the Inactive Suburbs Only check box to identify all inactive MSF81B records

Create a Suburb record on MSE81B

<u>Step 1.</u>

Launch MSE81B – Search Suburb.

<u>Step 2.</u>

Select the "New" Button to launch MSE81B – Create Suburb

MSE81B - Search Suburb 🛛 🗙	
🔍 Search 🔍 New Search 🔒	New

<u>Step 3.</u>

Enter the Suburb, Postcode, State and Country fields on MSE81B. Submit the record.

MSE81B - Search Suburb X	- The - Create Suburb * X *	
📀 Submit Refresh 🔍 New Search	Inactivate	
Suburb	HONOLULU COUNTY	
Post Code/Zip	96822	State HI 🔹 🕨 Hawaii
Country	US V UNITED STATES	Active 🖌

Notes:

1. The following error message will occur if a Suburb/Postcode combination already exists on MSF81B:

MSE81B - Search Suburb X MSE81B -	- Create Suburb * 🛛 👻		
🛇 Submit Refresh 🔍 New Search	Inactivate		
M3001_E0075: Suburb/Zipcode comb	bination already exists		
Suburb HOI			
Post Code/Zip 412	21		State QL 💌
Country AU	J		Active 🖌

Activate/Inactivate a Suburb record on MSE81B

<u>Step 1.</u>

Launch MSE81B – Search Suburb.

<u>Step 2.</u>

Perform the search for the required record to be made active or inactive. Double click on the search results to open MSE81B – Review Suburb.

MSE81B - Search Suburb 🛛 🛛					
🔍 Search 🔍 New Search 🔓 New					
Primary Criteria					
Suburb Search Method	Starts With 🔹				
Suburb	HONOLULU				
Filters					
Post Code/Zip					State 🔹
Country	•				Inactive Suburbs Only
Search Results					
Suburb	Post Code/Zip	State	Country	Active	
HONOLULU COUNTY	96822	HI - Hawaii	US - UNITED STATES	√	ר

<u>Step 3.</u>

Select the Activate or Inactivate button as required.

MSE81B - Search Suburb X MSE81B - Review Suburb X -	
arresh 🔓 New 📓 Delete 🔍 New Search 🛛 Inactivate	
Suburb HONOLULU COUNTY	
Post Code/Zip 96822	State HI 🕨 Hawaii
Country US > UNITED STATES	Active 🖌
l	

MSE81B - Search Suburb X	31B - Review Suburb 🛛 🛪 🔹	
🝣 Refresh 🛛 🔒 New 🙀 Delete 🔍 Ne	w Search Activate	
Suburb	HONOLULU COUNTY	
Post Code/Zip	96822	State HI 🕨 Hawaii
Country	US VINITED STATES	Active

Notes:

- 1. A record is activated by default upon creating via MSE81B.
- 2. It is possible to inactivate a record that is in use by Employees or Non-Employees. However, it is not possible to delete the record will it is in use.

Delete a Suburb record on MSE81B

<u>Step 1.</u>

Launch MSE81B – Search Suburb.

Step 2.

Perform the search for the required record to be deleted. Double click on the search results to open MSE81B – Review Suburb.

<u>Step 3.</u>

Ensure the record is inactive. Select the Delete Button.

MSE81B - Se	earch Subi	urb 🛛	MSE81B - Revi	ew Suburb	×-	
ಿ Refresh	🔒 New	📓 Delete	🧟 New Search	Activate		

Step 4.

Select Confirm. The record has now been deleted.

```
Confirm delete!
```

The Suburb will be permanently deleted. Are you sure you want to delete it?

Confirm	Cancel

Notes:

 A record cannot be deleted if an Employee(s) or a Non-Employee(s) is using the Suburb/Postcode combination in their residential and/or postal address. An administrator can tell if the record is in use on MSF810 and/or MSF811 by the Employees and Non Employees tabs on MSE81B. In the example below, there are 3 employees using the record.

💝 Refresh 🛛 🔒 New 📓 Delete 🔍	🤁 Refresh 🔒 New 🙀 Delete 🍕 New Search 📔 Activate					
Sul	HOLLAND PARK					
Post Code	/Zip 4121		State QL > Queensland			
Cou	ntry AU > AUSTRALIA		Active			
Employees/Non Employees with	an address using this suburb					
Employees Non Employees						
Employee	Employee Name					
000000087 - Smyth	Smyth,					
0000000120 - James FLOYD	FLOYD, James Robert					
0000000121 - Jenny FLOYD	FLOYD, Jenny Marie					

2. The user will receive the following message if they attempt to delete a record that is still in use on MSF810 and/or MSF811:

MSE81B - Search Suburb MSE8	1B - Review Suburb 🛛 🛪 🔹				
🧞 Refresh 🛛 🔒 New 🙀 Delete 🔍 New Search 🔰 Activate					
M3001_E0077: Cannot Delete - Suburb Still In Use					
Suburb	HOLLAND PARK				

Action to Personnel Workbench (MSE81S) from MSE81B

<u>Step 1.</u>

Right click on the employee grid row and select the "Detail" option to open MSE81S – Personnel Workbench for the required employee. Update the employee's residential and/or postal address as required.

MSE81B - Search Suburb X						
Refresh 🛛 🔒 Ne	w 📓 Delete	🝭 Ne	w Search Activate			
	Si	uburb	HOLLAND PARK			
	Post Cod	e/Zip	4121			
	Co	untry	AU AUSTRALIA			
Employees/Non E	mplovees wit	hana	address using this suburb			
			2			
Employees No	on Employees					
Employees No	on Employees	Em	ployee Name			
Employees No Employee 000000087 - Smyt	on Employees h	Em	i ployee Name nyth,			
Employees No Employee 000000087 - Smyt 0000000120 - Jam Jam	n Employees h Detail	Em Sn FL(i ployee Name nyth, DYD,James Robert			
Employees No Employee 000000087 - Smyt 0000000120 - Jam 0000000121 - Jenr	h Detail Navigate	Em Sn FL0	i ployee Name hyth, DYD,James Robert DYD,Jenny Marie			
Employees No Employee 000000087 - Smyt 0000000120 - Jam 0000000121 - Jenr	h Detail Navigate	Em Sn FLC	i ployee Name hyth, DYD,James Robert DYD,Jenny Marie			
Employees No Employee 000000087 - Smyt 0000000120 - Jam 0000000121 - Jenr	h Detail Navigate	Em Sn FL(n ployee Name nyth, DYD,James Robert DYD,Jenny Marie			

Notes:

- 1. Choose the "Navigate" option to launch Data Navigator for the specified employee.
- 2. Employees (Person Type = Core, Personnel, Personnel Terminated, Payroll and Payroll Terminated) will be displayed in the grid if they have a residential and/or postal address on MSF810 using this suburb/postcode combination.

Action to Maintain Non-Employee Details (MSO811) from MSE81B

<u>Step 1.</u>

Right click on the non-employee grid row and select the "Detail" option to open MSO811 – Maintain Non-Employee Details for the required non-employee. Update the non-employee's residential and/or postal address as required.

MSE81B - Search Sub	MSE81B - Search Suburb MSE81B - Review Suburb X *				
🗞 Refresh 🛛 🔒 New	Delete 🧟 New Search 🛛 Activate				
	Suburb HOLLAND PARK				
	Post Code/Zip 4121	State QL > Queensland			
	Country AU > AUSTRALIA	Active			
Employees/Non Emp	ployees with an address using this suburb				
Employees Non E	Imployees				
-					
Non Employee	Non Employee Name				
000000001	FLOYD, JOHN				
	Detail				

Notes:

1. Non-Employees will be displayed in the grid if they have a residential and/or postal address on MSF811 using this suburb/postcode combination.

Maintain Employee Residential/Postal Address (MSE81S)

<u>Step 1.</u>

Launch MSE81S – Personnel Workbench for the required employee.

<u>Step 2.</u>

Select the Address Tab.

		Emple	oyee 00000	000089	Adam Green					Person	Type CORE 🔹 🕨 Core
Name	Address	Contacts	Identity	Work Details	Position History	Locations	Printers	Emergency Contacts	Reference Codes	Employee Notes	
Resider	ntial Address	5			Address [
				Recidential Addr.	City State Post Code/Zip Country	• •			•	Defaults to today's da entering a	o ite if n
Postal /	Address			Use F	or Postal Address					new emnlr	
					City State Post Code/Zip Country	•					

<u>Step 3.</u>

Update the Residential and Postal Address fields as required. Submit.

Notes:

- 1. The residential address is only mandatory for payroll employees.
- 2. Entry of information in Address Line 1 (for residential or postal address) will result in the suburb, state, postcode and country fields becoming mandatory. This prevents partial addresses from being created.
- 3. Address Line 2 remains optional.
- 4. The City (Suburb) field is a filtered drop down. The Suburb, State, Postcode and Country will be displayed. Also if a record has an inactive status.

Residential Address		
Address		
City	HOLLAN	•
State	HOLLAND PARK - 4121 Queensland AUSTRALIA (Inactive)	
Post Code/Zip	HOLLAND PARK - 3128 Victoria AUSTRALIA	
Country	HOLLAND PARK WEST - 4121 Queensland AUSTRALIA	

- 5. The Postcode, State and Country fields will automatically be populated when a suburb is selected from the menu. If a suburb is not selected, the fields can be manually entered.
- 6. A user will receive the following warning message if suburb/postcode validation is switched on and they create a new suburb/postcode combination not held on MSF81B or select an inactive suburb/postcode combination



7. If the user chooses to proceed with the creation of a new MSF81B record or the use of an inactive MSF81B record, the incumbents of the relevant HR System Administrator position will receive an email notification for actioning. Separate emails will be generated for residential and postal addresses using invalid records.

Reply	Reply Forward to All Respond	Delete Move to Create Folder ~ Rule Actions	Other Actions *	Ck Not Junk der Junk E-mail	Categorize Follow Up + Options	Mark as Unread	 ♣ Find ♣ Related ▼ ♣ Select ▼ Find 		
From: To: Cc:	c079@aubne Jasen Floyd	e-s-dl0014.ventyx.com	rord		<u> </u>			, 	
You mana An ii ID : Nam Add Subv Post State	are receiving the aging MSF81B nactive suburb/ MARKA e : ARGENT,N ress type : Resi trb : SOMEWH Code : 4999 e : Queensland	is message as an incu Suburb/Postal Code postal code combinat MARK dential ERE	mbent of the records. ion has been t	nominated positi used for the follo	on for wing:				
Coun Mod Worl Emai Pleas recon <u>http:</u>	htry : AUSTRA ified By : JF39 k Phone : 6666 il Address : jas se activate the s ed after correcti //ellipse-c079.a	LIA 43 FLOYD,JASEN 566666 <u>en.floyd@ventyx.abb</u> uburb/postal code co: ng the relevant addre <u>ubne-s-dl0014.bnede</u>	o.com mbination via ss for the emj v.ventyx.abb.	MSE81B or delo ployee/non-emplo com/ria/ui.html?a	ete the syee. pplication=mse	81b&typ	e=read&subu	rbUuid=41C83B4B571240E09B44A5C527F212D	<u>2</u>

- 8. The recipient of the email notification must either activate MSF81B record if valid or correct the employee/non-employee addresses and delete the MSF81B record if invalid.
- 9. If a user enters an invalid special character in the address field, they will receive the following error message and will need to correct the record before re-submitting.

1640: INVALID CHARACTER USED IN STRING

Maintain Non-Employee Residential/Postal Address (MSO811)

Step 1.

Launch MSO811 – Maintain Non-Employee Details for the required non-employee.



Option	2. Modify a Non-Employee	•
Non-Em	plovee Id 1	

0 M 116

Step 2.

Select the Residential Address tab or the Postal Address tab.

Submit 🖓 F	DIFY NON-EMPLO	YEE DETAILS X				
Non-Employee Id	000000001					
Category	6 🔹 Instru	ctor				
Name Resid	ential Address	Postal Address	Contact	General	SSN/SIN	Skills Passport
Address Suburb or City	11 Holland Rd HOLLAND PAR	<				
State Code Country Code Use For Postal Add	QL V AU V	Post Code	4121			
MSM811B - MOD	IFY NON-EMPLOY	EE DETAILS X				

Non-Employee Id	000000001						
Category	tegory 6 TInstructor						
Name Reside	ential Address	Postal Address	Contact	General	SSN/SIN	Skills Passport	
Address							
Suburb or City							
State Code	•	Post Code					
Country Code	•						

<u>Step 3.</u>

Update the Residential and/or Postal Address fields as required. Submit.

Notes:

- 1. There is no drop down on the suburb (Suburb or City) field for MSO811.
- 2. A user will receive the following warning message if suburb/postcode validation is switched on and they create a new suburb/postcode combination not held on MSF81B or select an inactive suburb/postcode combination

Warnings have occurred!					
▲ D207: ADDRESS COMBINATION DOES NOT EXIST					
-	Confirm Cancel				

- 3. If the user chooses to proceed with the creation of a new MSF81B record or the use of an inactive MSF81B record, the incumbents of the relevant HR System Administrator position will receive an email notification for actioning. Separate emails will be generated for residential and postal addresses using invalid records.
- 4. The recipient of the email notification must either activate the valid MSF81B record <u>or</u> correct the employee/non-employee addresses and delete the invalid MSF81B record.

5. If a user enters an invalid special character in the address field, they will receive the following error message and will need to correct the record before re-submitting.

1640: INVALID CHARACTER USED IN STRING

FAQs

Question: 1

What happens if a HR System Administrator position is not nominated against a CRAV country code?

Response:

If the associated value for the HR System Administrator position on the CRAV table code is blank, the Default HR Administrator Position nominated on MSM001E – Maintain System Control File is used. The MSM001E Default HR Administrator Position field is mandatory.

Question 2:

CRAV table controls the address validation at a country level. How is the country to be validated against being determined for the employee/non-employee?

Response:

The country specified in the address field for the employee/non-employee is being used to validate against the CRAV country code settings. For example, if the user enters an address and specifies the country as Canada, then the address will be validated per the CRAV associated value settings against the Canada code.

Question: 3

Is special character validation in the address fields independent of the suburb/postcode validation?

Response:

Yes. These functions can be used independently. They are both managed at a country level via the CRAV table.

Question: 4

As a system administrator, do I have to migrate codes that already exist in the SUCI 010 table to MSF81B as part of the Ellipse 8.4 upgrade?

Response:

No. The migration will occur automatically. The SUCI table codes will then be deleted.

Question: 5

Why display inactive codes in the suburb field in MSE81S-Personnel Workbench?

Response:

Inactive codes are displayed (and tagged as "inactive") in the drop down so that potentially valid codes can be used. System administrators are required to delete invalid suburb/postcode combinations.

If suburb validation checking is switched on and inactive codes were not displayed, the suburb, state, postcode and country fields would be made blank prior to submit.

Question: 6

How do I load suburb/postcode records into MSF81B so that most entries for a country can be validated?

Response:

Appendix 1 details the steps for uploading records into MSF81B via Smart Excel.

Question: 7

Can I change the notification message that is sent to the HR System Administrator position incumbents?

Response:

No. This is a non-configurable message. Please advise Ventyx for suggestions of additional information to be included in the message.

Appendix – Updating MSF81B via Smart Excel

The following provides an example of how to load new suburb records into MSF81B using the smart excel function:

<u>Step 1</u>

Select the Smart Excel option in the Excel dropdown from the MSE81B – Search Suburb program. There is no need to perform a search because in this exercise we are creating new records only.



Note: Ensure all plugins are installed for the use of Smart Excel.

Smart Excel
Smart Excel enables the user to interact using excel spreadsheet.
Please be sure the .NET 4 Extended Framework and Visual Studio for Office Tool 2010 are installed before executing the Smart Excel office customisation plugin.
If you are Smart Excel first time user, please make sure the Smart Excel Office plugin is installed prior to using the spreadsheet. * The plugin can only be deployed via the web using Microsoft Internet Explorer.
Install the plugin OK Cancel
Step 2

Select "OK"

Smart Excel Export	
The Excel spreadsheet has been successfully exported.	
	ОК

<u>Step 3</u>

Save the export to the required directory



<u>Step 4</u>

Open the saved file in Excel and select the "Suburb" tab.

Image: Solution of the second sec	FORMULAS DATA REVIEW VIEW Vent	/X	MSE81BExcel - Ex	cel				6	-				? 📧 Jaser
→ → Calibri 11 Paste → Format Painter Clipboard r ₂ Font	A [*] A [*] = = Image: Wrap Text * A [*] = = Image: E Image: E G Alignment	General	Conditional Form Formatting + Tab	Normal at as Neutral	Bad Calcu Styles	ilation	Good Check Ce	↓ ↓	insert De	ellete Format	∑ AutoSun ↓ Fill + Clear +</td <td>Sort & Filter *</td> <td>Find & Select *</td>	Sort & Filter *	Find & Select *
A11 ▼ × √ fx													
A B	C D	E	F	G	н	I	J	К	L	М	N	0	Р
1 MSE81B - Suburb													
2 3 Search Parameter 4 Action Process Status Error N 5 process action process status err me	CharArray(0) Message Country	Bool(0) Inactive Suburbs Only inactiveInd	CharArray(0) State	CharArray(0) Suburb	CharArray(0) Suburb UUID	CharArray Post Code	(0)						
6 AddressSuburb.search 7		N											
8 Detail 9 Action Process Status Error N	CharArray(0) Message Suburb UUID	CharArray(0) Suburb	CharArray(0)	CharArray(0) State	CharArray(0)	Bool(0) Active	CharArray Created B	CharArray Created B	Date(0) Created Da	CharArra	y CharArray	CharArray Modified	Date(0) (Modified (
10 process_action process_status err_me	essage suburbUuid	suburb	zipCode	state	country	activeInd	createdBy	createdBy	createdDa	te createdT	irmodified	modified	modified[r
12 13 14 15 15 16 17 17 17 18 10 17 10 17 10 17 10 17 10 17 10 17 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	This is the ready for d	blank temp ata to be a	olate Idded										
20 21													
22 23 24													
25 26 27													
28 29 30													
31													
33 34 35													
36	Employees Non Employees 🕀				: 4]						

<u>Step 5</u>

Enter the new codes to be loaded into MSF81B from Excel. In the example below, four new codes will be created:

HOLLAND PARK NORTH

HOLLAND PARK CENTRAL

HOLLAND PARK SOUTH

SAMPLE SUBURB (this code will be created with the status of inactive for demonstration purposes)

Detail			CharArray(0)	CharArray(0)	CharArray(0)	CharArray(0)	CharArray(0)	Bool(0)	CharArray	CharArray	Date(0)	CharArray	CharArray	Cha
Action	Process Status	Error Message	Suburb UUID	Suburb	Post Code/Zip	State		Active	Created B	Created B	Created Date	Created T	Modified	Мо
process action	process_status	err_message	suburbUuid	suburb	zipCode	state	country	activeInd	createdBy	createdBy	createdDate	createdTi	modifiedE	mo
AddressSuburb.create				HOLLAND PARK NORTH	4121	QL	AU	Y						
AddressSuburb.create				HOLLAND PARK CENTRAL	4121	QL	AU	Y						
AddressSuburb.create				HOLLAND PARK SOUTH	4121	QL	AU	Y						
AddressSuburb.create				SAMPLE SUBURB	9999	QL	AU	N						

Important: Ensure the Process Action of AddressSuburb.create is used.

<u>Step 6</u>

Select "Ventyx" from the menu bar.

X	🗄 🕤 👌 🗧					
F	ILE HOME INSER	T PAGE LAYO	UT FORMULA	S DATA REVIE	W VIEW Ventys	(
	Cut	Calibri 🔹	11 ~ A A	≡ = ≫.	🛱 Wrap Text	General -
Pa	ste 💉 Format Painter 🛛	B I <u>U</u> -	• <u>A</u> • <u>A</u> •	≡≡≡ €₩	🖶 Merge & Center 👻	\$ * % * ^{€.0} .00 (
	Clipboard 🕞	Font	G.	Alignr	ment r	a Number 🕞
11	4 • · X	<i>√ ∫</i> x N	I			
	А	В	С	[D	E
7						
7 8	Detail			CharArray(0)		CharArray(0)
7 8 9	Detail Action	Process Status	Error Message	CharArray(0) Suburb UUID		CharArray(0) Suburb
7 8 9 10	Detail Action process_action	Process Status process_status	Error Message err_message	CharArray(0) Suburb UUID suburbUuid		CharArray(0) Suburb suburb
7 8 9 10 11	Detail Action process_action AddressSuburb.create	Process Status process_status	Error Message err_message	CharArray(0) Suburb UUID suburbUuid		CharArray(0) Suburb suburb HOLLAND PARK NORTH
7 8 9 10 11 12	Detail Action process_action AddressSuburb.create AddressSuburb.create	Process Status process_status	Error Message err_message	CharArray(0) Suburb UUID suburbUuid		CharArray(0) Suburb suburb HOLLAND PARK NORTH HOLLAND PARK CENTRAL
7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Detail Action process_action AddressSuburb.create AddressSuburb.create AddressSuburb.create	Process Status process_status	Error Message err_message	CharArray(0) Suburb UUID suburbUuid		CharArray(0) Suburb suburb HOLLAND PARK NORTH HOLLAND PARK CENTRAL HOLLAND PARK SOUTH
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Detail Action process_action AddressSuburb.create AddressSuburb.create AddressSuburb.create AddressSuburb.create	Process Status process_status	Error Message err_message	CharArray(0) Suburb UUID suburbUuid		CharArray(0) Suburb suburb HOLLAND PARK NORTH HOLLAND PARK CENTRAL HOLLAND PARK SOUTH SAMPLE SUBURB

<u>Step 7</u>

Select Submit from the menu bar.

x	🛛 🔂 🕈 👌	Ŧ				
F	ILE HOME	INSERT	PAGE LAYO	UT FORMULA	AS DATA	REVIEV
Sub	omit Search Grids	S More Logout	Results *	Add Utilities	fig Drace Log Folder Version Help	
114	4 👻 :	×	√ ƒ _× N			
	А		В	С		D
7						
8	Detail				CharArray(0)	
9	Action	Pro	ocess Status	Error Message	Suburb UUID	
10	process_action	pro	ocess_status	err_message	suburbUuid	
11	AddressSuburb.cr	eate				
12	AddressSuburb.cr	eate				
13	AddressSuburb.cr	eate				
14	AddressSuburb.cr	eate				
15						
16						
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Detail Action process_action AddressSuburb.cr AddressSuburb.cr AddressSuburb.cr AddressSuburb.cr	Pro pro eate eate eate eate	ocess Status ocess_status	Error Message err_message	CharArray(0) Suburb UUID suburbUuid	

Step 8

Complete the log in details and select Login

Login	<
Username JF3943	
Password	
District R100	
Position SYSAD	
Remember Me Login	

<u>Step 9</u>

A process bar will display the status of the update

F	Progress	
Clearing all styling		Cancel

<u>Step 10</u>

Review the results. The green shading means the load was successful for each record.

)etail			CharArray(0)	CharArray(0)	CharArray(0)	CharArray(0)	CharArray(0)	Bool(0)	CharArray	CharArray	Date(0)	CharArray	CharArray	CharArray	Date(0)	CharArray
		Error Message														Modified
rocess_action	process_status	err_message	suburbUuid	suburb	zipCode	state	country	activeInd	createdBy	createdBy	createdDate	createdTir	modified	modified	modified	modified1
	Info		A30DE8EA10A548818FAC70E26AF8D460	HOLLAND PARK NORTH	4121	QL	AU	Y	JF3943	JF3943	1/03/2014	121604	JF3943	JF3943	*****	121604
	Info		F3D6B3F924E64750931B934C8B5ECF38	HOLLAND PARK CENTRAL	4121	QL	AU	Y	JF3943	JF3943	1/03/2014	121604	JF3943	JF3943	*****	121604
	Info		7119534E95784F3AA6A2B2F936AA3734	HOLLAND PARK SOUTH	4121	QL	AU	Y	JF3943	JF3943	1/03/2014	121604	JF3943	JF3943	*****	121604
	Info		AC3133F7070B429DB17D224FD6F90DF2	SAMPLE SUBURB	9999	QL	AU	N	JF3943	JF3943	1/03/2014	121604	JF3943	JF3943	*****	121604
	Info Info Info		F3D6B3F924E64750931B934C885ECF38 7119534E95784F3AA6A282F936AA3734 AC3133F7070B429DB17D224FD6F90DF2	HOLLAND PARK CENTRAL HOLLAND PARK SOUTH SAMPLE SUBURB	4121 4121 9999	QL QL	AU AU AU	Y Y N	JF3943 JF3943 JF3943	JF3943 JF3943 JF3943	1/03/2014 1/03/2014 1/03/2014	121604 121604 121604	JF3943 JF3943 JF3943	JF3943 JF3943 JF3943	*****	

This can also be confirmed via the comments on the Process Action grid items per the screen capture below:

rocess Status Error Message
core.E06004 : : age Action successfully completed.

Step 11 (Optional)

Review the new records via MSE81B - Suburb Search

MSE81B - Search Suburb X - MSE81B - Review	v Suburb							
Search Rew Search New								
rimary Criteria								
Suburb Search Me	ethod All 🔹							
Su	Jburb							
Iters								
Post Cod	e/Zip					State		
Co	untry •				In	active Suburbs Only		
earch Results								
iburb	Post Code/Zip	State	Country	Active	Created By Emp	Created By User	Created Date	Created Tim 1 🛦
	8	88	• 88	• 🛛 🗌	8	• 88	88	I • 121604
ULAND PARK SOUTH	4121	QL - Queensland	AU - AUSTRALIA	V	JF3943	JF3943	03 Jan 2014	121604
LLAND PARK NORTH	4121	QL - Queensland	AU - AUSTRALIA	\checkmark	JF3943	JF3943	03 Jan 2014	121604
LLAND PARK CENTRAL	4121	QL - Queensland	AU - AUSTRALIA	V	JF3943	JF3943	03 Jan 2014	121604
MPLE SUBURB	9999	QL - Queensland	AU - AUSTRALIA		JF3943	JF3943	03 Jan 2014	121604
				1				
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
	()	/				
)	1				
	Inact	ive Statı	us for	1				
	Inact	ive Statu	us for	1				